
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2023 

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 

1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS

4. NEW BUSINESS
a. Update on Communities Supporting Schools (Selena Bennett)
b. Election Method Discussion (City Manager)
c. Fiscal Accountability Agreement Between the City of Goldsboro and the Local Government

Commission (City Manager)

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A.1.  Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of January 23, 2023
A.2.  Minutes of the Special Meeting of January 26, 2023

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Employee Performance Awards 
C. National School-Based Health Care Awareness Month and WISH’s 25th Anniversary Proclamation 
D. Developmental Disability Awareness Month Proclamation  
E. Night to Shine (Donna Countryman) 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS
F. Z-30-22 Glandon Forest Equity, LLC. (R6 to NBCZ) – West side of S. Herman St. between E. Elm St. and

E. Pine St. (Planning) – Continued from January 9, 2023  
G. Z-31-22 Habitat for Humanity of Goldsboro-Wayne (Residential 9 to Residential 6) – East side of Dr.

H.E. McNair St. (Planning) 
H. Z-1-23 Harry & Mollie, LLC (IBP-1 to GB) – East side of McLain Street between Oak Forest Road and

East Ash Street Extension (Planning) 
I. SU-1-23 300 S. William St. (Bed & Breakfast) –Corner of E. Spruce St. and S. William St. (Planning)

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
J. Amend the Special Revenue Fund Ordinance for project closeout – BJA FY20 Coronavirus Emergency

Supplemental Funding Program (2020-VD-BX-1476) (P3106) (Finance) 
K. Utility Construction Agreement with NCDOT for Water and Sewer Line Relocations relating to replacing

Bridge No. 20 on US 70 Business (Grantham Street) NCDOT Project B-4838 (Engineering) 
L. Amended CDBG Public Services Policy (Community Relations)
M. Split-Jurisdiction Agreement between the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne (Planning)
N. Farm Lease Agreements (Planning)
O. FY 2022 Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grant Agreement (City Manager)

IX. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION



 

2 

 
 
 
 

X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

XI. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS  
P. Black History Month Proclamation  
Q. Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Eddie Moses as an Employee of The City 

of Goldsboro for More Than 26 Years 
 

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS  
 

XIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 

XIV. ADJOURN 



SHAPING THE FUTURE
CSS of Wayne County

“The Mission of Communities 

Supporting Schools of Wayne County 

is to provide opportunities for 

students to stay in school, graduate, 

and be successful in life.

w.s. item a



Board Members
2022-2023

Cristy Barnes- Williams                   President

Julie Beck     – Vice-President

Tiffany Creech  – Secretary

Beverly Wallace-Wiggins - Treasurer

Ryan Barbato

Donna Best

Jennifer Collins

Kim Copeland

Kriquette Davis

Renita Dawson

Ken Derksen

D’Leeshia Lee

Justin Minshew

Pam Stokes

Shannon Weeks

2



Programs and Services 

WCPS School Support Services

(Funded through grants and donations)

• Success Coach Program

• School Supplies

• Mentoring

Restorative Justice for Wayne Juveniles 
(Funded through Juvenile Crime Prevention and overseen by 

NC Department of Public Safety)
• Teen Court
• Community Service
• Mediation



4

The Dropout Crisis

 1/3 of American high school students do not 
graduate on time
 ½ of Hispanic, African American, and 

American Indian students do not graduate 
on time
 Everyday 7,000 students drop out of high 

school & 1.2 million students drop out of 
high school each year
 Individuals and society suffer: difficult to 

find employment, more likely to seek 
government support, and have more health 
issues
 75% of prison inmates are high school 

dropouts



Success Coach Program
Goldsboro High School- Anne Millington
Brogden Middle School- Greg Batts
Dillard Middle – Mary Kay James
Grantham Middle School- Debbie Brantham
Mount Olive Middle School- Terri McKay
Spring Creek Middle School- Veda McNair
Southern Wayne High School- Sharon Patterson   
Brogden Primary School - Nancy Lancaster 
Carver Elementary- Wendy Hooks                                                    
Carver Heights Elementary- Gale Lewis

Robin DeVeaux

5



Thank You For Your Support

City of Goldsboro Non-Profit Funding helps to serve students in three 
schools in Goldsboro:

Carver Heights Elementary School
Dillard Middle School

Goldsboro High School



Carver Heights Elementary
Began in January 2019- Focusing on Elementary Reading



Partnership with Saint Paul Methodist Church at Carver Heights for our 
reading program!!  Volunteers are vital to our success!



Dillard Middle School
CSS Program Since 2018

Focus – Academics, Small Groups, Career Goals



Goldsboro High School Programs 
CSS Program Began in 2008

Focusing on Graduation,  Academics, Career Goals



Stuff the Bus 



CSS Restorative Justice Program
“Doing Something Different”

Where there is no relationship,
there is no influence.

Problems that don’t occur overnight,
can’t be resolved overnight.

We are only as strong as our weakest link.

RELATIONSHIP

COMMITMENT

PREVENTION



Waynecss.org

PROGRAMS don’t change People-RELATIONSHIPS  do!

Click on the SUBSCRIBE tab on our website to receive our free e-Newsletter.



w.s. c









1 of 10 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
 JANUARY 23, 2023 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Council Chambers, City 
Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on January 23, 2023.   

Call to Order.  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews 
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Matthew Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

Absent: Councilman Greg Batts 

Adoption of the Agenda.   Upon motion of Councilman Broadaway, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Polack, and 
unanimously carried, Council adopted the agenda.  

Old Business. 
HOME ARP Funding Allocation Discussion. Felecia Williams, Community Relations Director provided the 

following information: HOME-ARP Allocation for Non-Congregate Shelter & Supportive Services. The City Council 
has elected to utilize HOME-ARP funds to provide Non-Congregate Shelter and Supportive Services to assist individuals or 
households who are homeless, at risk of homelessness, and other vulnerable populations.  

At the December 19, 2022 City Council meeting, Washington Business Dynamics consultants presented the communities’ 
current needs and gaps in services to the homeless populations.  As a result, City Council elected to fund Non-Congregate 
Shelter and Supportive Services.  

HUD requires the City include how it intends to distribute HOME-ARP Funds in the HOME-ARP Allocation Plan.  The 
HOME-ARP Allocation Plan, due to HUD by March 30, 2023, must be submitted as a substantial amendment to the FY21 
Annual Action Plan for HUD review and acceptance. During the Commission on Community Relations and development’s 
January meeting, members discussed funding for the two eligible activities and have prepared an official recommendation to 
Council.  

HOME-ARPALLOCATION

P r e s e n t e d b y : C o m m u n i t y R e l a t i o n s D e p a r t m e n t

▪ HOME-ARP Allocation Plan isdue to HUD by March 30, 2023.
WBD (Washington BusinessDynamics) Consultants are currently
awaiting Council’s decisionon how to allocate the funds for the
chosen eligible ac�vi�es:Non-Congregate Shelter & Supportive
Services.

▪ Breakdown of the allocation:

HOME-ARPAllocation Plan

Total Allocation $907,913

Administration (15%) $136,186.95

HUD Released (5%) $45,395.65

Remaining for Admin. $90,791.30

Remaining Allocation $817,121.70

HOME-ARP
Allocation Plan HOME-ARP Allocation Plan must include:

▪ A descrip�on of how the City intends to distribute HOME-ARP
funds

▪ A descrip�on of how the funds will be used to address the
needs of the HOME-ARP qualifying populations

▪ A descrip�on of the intended method for solici�ng
applications for funding and/or selecting developers, service
providers, subrecipients and/or contractors*HUD will

approve/disapprove the
Alloca�on Plan within 45
days of submission.

Non-Congregate
Shelter
NCS Facts:

• Defined as an emergency shelter
that provides private sleeping
space.

• Eligibleac�vi�es include:1)
Acquisi�on, 2) Rehabilita�on, 3)
New Construc�on.

• Restricted Use Period must be
enforced by the City:

. New Construction 15 years

Rehabilitation 10 years

Acquisi�on Only 10 years

Item A1



2 of 10 
 

  

  

  
 
Terri Bradley, Commission on Community Relations and Development Chair provided the following information: 

  

  
Councilwoman Jones clarified that all the tent city inhabitants do not want to stay at the tent city. Council discussed the 
presentation with Ms. Williams and Ms. Bradley.  
 
It was recommended that City Council make the HOME-ARP allocation decision at or before the February 6, 2023 City 
Council meeting in order to ensure timely submission of the HOME-ARP Allocation Plan. 
 
Council discussed the allocation with Ms. Williams and Ms. Bradley. Councilman Broadaway recommended using an 
advisory board of stakeholders to work with the homeless. Council discussed stakeholders and the distribution allocation. 
Councilman Broadaway made a motion to support the program with 80% going to non-congregate and 20% going to 

Non-Con
Shelter
NCS Facts:

• Following the R
Period:

gregate

estricted Use

Continue use as NCS
under the Emergency
Shelter Grant (ESG)
program

*Note: The local ESG
program is operated by
Eastpointe

Convert the NCS into
permanent affordable
housing under the
Region 10 Continuum
of Care (CoC), in
compliance with CoC
program regulations.

*City May: provide
written approval to
convert the project
*Note: Eastpointe
serves as Region 10
CoC Lead

Non-Congregate
Shelter
Project Development Due Diligence
The City must:

• Determine that
acquisi�on/development is financially
feasible, to include ongoing opera�ng
costs. *Opera�ng costs are INELIGLBE
for HOME-ARP funds

• Review informa�on from
owner/developer that demonstrates
financial feasibility for the Restricted
Use Period.

• Before commit�ng funds, d etermine
whether the owner intends to
con�nue opera�ng the project as a
HOME-ARP NCS, ESG Shelter, or
convert to permanent housing after
Restricted Use Period met.

.

SupportiveServices
There are three Eligible Supportive

Services under HOME-ARP:

• McKinney-Vento
Suppor�ve Services

• Homelessness
Preven�on Services

• Housing Counseling
Services

SupportiveServices
McKinney-Vento & Homelessness

Prevention Services:
• Costs of childcare

• Costs of improving knowledge & basic education
skills

• Costs of establishing and/or operating
employment assistanceand jobtraining programs

• Costs of providing meals or groceries

• Costs of assisting eligible program participants to
locate, obtain and retain housing.

• Costs of certain legal services

• Costs of teaching critical life management skills

• Financial assistance costs, including, Rental
application fees, security deposits, utility deposits,
payment of rental arrears

*The costs of homelessness prevention services are
only eligible if they help participants regain stability in
their current permanent housing or move into other
permanent housing to achieve stability in that
housing.

SupportiveServices
Housing Counseling:

*Must be provided by a HUD-certified housing
counseling organization

Eligible Costs include:

• Staff salaries and overhead costs of HUD-certified
housing counseling agencies related to directly
providing eligible housing counseling services

• Development of a housing counseling workplan

• Marketing and outreach

• Intake

• Financial & housing affordability analysis

• Ac�ons plans that outline what the housing
counseling agency and client will do to meet the
client’s housing goals and that address the client’s
housing problem(s)

• Follow-up communication with program
participants

SupportiveServices
Oversight and Management

*The City is responsible for:
• Day-to-day management and

oversight
• Oversight of eligible costs

compliance (which ensures costs
are necessary and reasonable)

• Ensuring there is no duplica�on of
services

• Termina�on of Assistance (when
program requirements or
condi�ons of occupancy are
violated)

For official HOME-ARPGuidance, please visit…

h t t p s : / / w w w . h u d e x c h a n g e . i n f o / p r o g r a m s / h o m e - a r p /

Commission on Community
Relations & Development

 CCRD Home ARP
Recommendations

Council voted on two areas for funding

1. Non-Congregate Shelters

\ k P833257,9& P&59 ,$&6 ! 6 %&–1&% ,1  \ ^  @CO _a b k_ ] kÅ&Ç

On Tuesday January 10 th the Commission on Community Relations and Development discussed in detail how to allocate
percentages to these categories.

The Mayor, City Manager and Assistant City Manager were present should we have any questions.

The commission voted a 60/40 allocation non -congregate shelter to supportive services.

 Tent city inhabitants do not want to move. However, they are in need of services such as mental health
counseling, job services, substance abuse rehabilitation.

 There is a high level of opioid abuse across our nation. Opioids take the minimum of 3 months care and subsequent follow -
up to assure success.

 Unsheltered homeless are spread to several areas of the city.

 This community is in need of non-congregate shelters. (max 6mo.)

 Supportive services needed range from mental health counseling to job track and or education.

The CCRD would like to thank
the Council and City Manager for

trusting us and allowing us
latitude to continue to serve the

communities and City of
Goldsboro.



3 of 10 
 

support services. There was no second and the motion failed. Councilwoman Jones made a motion to accept the 60/40 
recommendation from the Commission.  The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Matthews. Mayor Ham, Mayor Pro 
Tem Polack, Councilwoman Jones, Councilwoman Matthews and Councilman Gaylor voted for the motion. Councilman 
Broadaway voted against the motion. The motion passed 5:1.    
 

New Business.  
 T.C. Coley Center Update. Felicia Brown, Parks and Recreation Director, provided the following information: 

  

  

  
 
Council discussed the T.C. Coley Community Center and emergency shelter.  
 
 Downtown Parking Discussion. Erin Fonseca, Downtown Development Director, introduced new employee, Greg 
Mills, Business and Property Development Specialist. She also shared the following comments:  I’m here this evening to 
invite the public to participate in a Downtown Public Parking Forum at Wayne County Museum this Thursday at 5:30pm. 
The museum is located at 116 North William Street. Though this is technically a special meeting of the Council, due to the 
amount of interest for Council members to participate, the primary objective is to listen and learn. There is no intent to make 
a decision based on feedback during the meeting, but simply to gather feedback from stakeholders regarding their needs and 
desires related to public parking. This meeting is open to the public, and all are welcome to attend. EVERYONE is affected 
by downtown parking – not just business and property owners, tenants, and employees, but anyone who parks downtown. If 
you are here this evening, you likely drove, and are therefore a stakeholder in the conversation on public parking. Parking is 
not a new topic of discussion or challenge, nor is it a challenge with one clear solution. It is constantly changing and 
involves a long list of stakeholders with varying needs. For reference, a comprehensive traffic and parking study was 
conducted in 2016, which can be found on our website. It also included public input opportunities. The study cited sufficient 
capacity, with over 1,900 public spaces, but outlined potential short and long-term management strategies that have not been 
revisited since wayfinding signage was installed in 2020. Demand on available parking has grown with the addition of 80+ 
upper story residential units since 2016 and 40 building renovations. This is exciting growth for our downtown economy; 
however, it puts a strain on public parking. A great problem to have, but a consistent concern of downtown stakeholders, 
nonetheless. The public parking input forum will be facilitated by a third-party professional, with extensive experience in 
parking management for a fellow municipality. Dwight Bassett - who presented to Council during last year’s retreat - was 
recommended by the NC Main Street and Rural Planning Director at NC’s Dept of Commerce. Mr. Bassett was asked to 
facilitate to direct the conversation in a completely unbiased manner. Additionally, the location was selected as a neutral 
location, to ensure that all feel welcome to join and participate. For maximum awareness, this meeting has been shared via 
the City’s website, water bill and social media pages, as well as post cards that were hand-delivered and mailed to 
downtown stakeholders. For those who cannot physically make the meeting, it will be aired on Facebook, and the 
facilitator’s email will be shared for those who wish to provide feedback outside of the meeting. Our goal is to make sure 

T.C. COLEY COMMUNITY CENTER

Felicia L. Brown, MPRTSM, CPRP
Parks and Recrea�on Director

January 23, 2023

BACKGROUND
• In 2016, City Council decided to renovate what is now the T. C. Coley Community

Center; renovations were completed in 2018 at a cost of ~$210K

• Plans for a non -profit to operate the facility did not materialize

• In February of 2019, City Council directed Parks and Recreation to operate the
facility for one year; during this time non -profits would be able to use the facility at
no charge

• In February of 2020, City Council directed a lease agreement be implemented with
Ashford Boxing Club for the Gymnasium and approved Parks and Recreation to
charge rental rates for the rest of the facility

1/20/2023 2

PARKS AND RECREATION PROGRAMMING
• In September of 2022, Herman Park Center was closed due to positive mold test

results

• Parks and Recreation Staff housed in Herman Park Center were relocated to what is
now the Herman Park Admin Bldg (formerly known as the Senior House)

• Programs that occurred at Herman Park Center and the Senior House were
relocated to other facilities including T. C. Coley Community Center

1/20/2023 3

T. C. COLEY COMMUNITY CENTER
• Annual operating costs are estimated to be ~$35K – expect this number to increase

with relocating programs due to Herman Park Center closing

• Rental revenue for FY22 was $8K – expect this number to increase with Herman
Park Center closing

• City Council approved repairing the roof over the Recreation Room and interior
painting at an estimated cost of ~$55K during November 21, 2022 meeting

1/20/2023 4

T. C. COLEY COMMUNITY CENTER NOW
• Pottery Program meets in Meeting Room (back of building)

• Senior Programming - card groups meet in Recreation Room

• Special Populations Activities occur in Recreation Room

• Rentals occur in Meeting Room (with mirrors) and Recreation Room

• In process of moving billiard tables and other Leisure Center items to Recreation
Room

• Other programs will be added, including summer camps

1/20/2023 5

QUESTIONS?

1/20/2023 6



4 of 10 
 

that we gather as much input as possible and reduce barriers. There has already been significant interest in this opportunity. 
All information gathered will be brought back to Council, in order to allow you to make an educated citizen input based 
decision should the need arise to make a decision on parking management. Again, we believe that everyone is a downtown 
parking stakeholder, and stakeholder input is a key component in all policy making. 
 

Consent Agenda Review. Items D - M on the consent agenda were reviewed. Further discussion included items 
below.  

 
Item G. Approve Facility Use Lease for Balanced Choice Vending LLC at Goldsboro Golf & Event Center. 

Council discussed Balanced Choice Vending and the facility.  
 
Item H. Contract Award for 2023 Public Safety Complex HVAC Boiler Replacement Project. Council 

discussed the bids.  
 
Mayor Ham inquired about panhandling registration and the registration process. Chief West stated they have issued 

nine permits and discussed the panhandling registration process.   
 

Closed Session.  
Upon motion of Mayor Pro Tem Polack, seconded by Councilwoman Jones, and unanimously carried, Council went 

into Closed Session to discuss litigation. 
 
After the Closed Session was held, Council came out of Closed Session and back into Open Session. 

 
The meeting recessed at 6:24 p.m. 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 
214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on January 23, 2023. 
 
Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Archbishop Anthony Slater with Tehillah Church Ministries provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews  
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  
 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Matthew Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  
 

Absent:  Councilman Greg Batts 
 
Mayor Ham explained the Public Comment Period procedures.  
  
Approval of Minutes.  Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion to approve the minutes of the Work Session and 

Regular Meeting of January 9, 2023. The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried.   
 
Public Hearings.  
Non-Contiguous Annexation Request – J and J Daniels Farming Enterprises, LLC. - Located on the east side 

of South 111 Hwy. (Corner of South NC 111 Hwy. and Ditchbank Rd.). Public Hearing Held and Ordinance 
Adopted. The City Council, at their meeting on December 19, 2022, scheduled a public hearing for the proposed annexation 
of the subject property.  A public hearing notice was properly advertised stating the time, place and purpose of the meeting. 

Pursuant to G. S. 160A-58, at the public hearing, all persons owning property in the area proposed to be annexed, as well as 
the residents of the municipality, shall be given an opportunity to be heard on the proposed annexation.  

If the Council determines that the proposed annexation meets all the requirements of G. S. 160A-58, it has the authority to 
adopt an annexation ordinance. 

A report was prepared by the Planning Department in conjunction with other departments, concerning the subject 
annexation area.  All City services can be provided to the property except for City water.  Water will be provided to the 
subject annexation area via Eastern Wayne Sanitary Water District.  



5 of 10 
 

It was recommended that Council, after the public hearing, adopt the following entitled Ordinance annexing J and J Farming 
Enterprises, LLC. effective January 23, 2023. 

Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. The following person spoke:  

1. Steve Oliverio, Bartlett Engineering in Wilson, shared he is here with the developer, Paul Quinn to answer 
any questions. He shared this is a clean up proposal to get this entire parcel annexed. A major portion of the 
parcel was annexed years ago with proposed development but never came to fruition.   

 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Polack to adopt the ordinance annexing J and J Daniels Farming Enterprises. 
The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried.  Council adopted the following entitled 
Ordinance. 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-4 “AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING CERTAIN NON-CONTIGUOUS REAL PROPERTY TO THE 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 
 

Street Closing-Dakota Avenue (From East Fourth Street to East Fifth Street) East Fifth Street (From 
Humphrey Street to Dakota Avenue). Public Hearing Held and Ordinance Adopted. Petitioner: County of Wayne.  On 
December 8, 2022, the County of Wayne petitioned for two street closures referenced above in preparation for developing 
an office complex for County agencies to operate.  The referenced street sections have been identified on the attached map 
indicating the length and right-of-way width. 

The petitioned street closings have been forwarded to the Fire, Police, Engineering and Public Works Departments for their 
review.  No objections to the closing have been submitted. 

The Engineering Department has indicated that a utility easement should be reserved over Dakota Avenue for an existing 6-
inch water line and an existing 8-inch sewer line if the public right of way is closed.  In addition, the Engineering 
Department has indicated that a utility easement should be reserved over Fifth Street for an existing 6-inch water line and an 
existing 8-inch sewer line if the public right of way is closed.  

Wayne County has agreed to provide a survey of the property identifying the location of all utilities and the easements 
proposed as reserved by the City of Goldsboro. 

If the street sections are closed, ownership of the right-of-way would return to the County of Wayne.  

On December 19, 2022, City Council adopted a Resolution of Intent setting the public hearing for January 23, 2023 and that 
Resolution was advertised for four weeks in the local newspaper.   Adjacent property owners were notified of the public 
hearing by certified mail and the street section was posted with notice of the public hearing. 

It was recommended that Council accept the recommendation of City staff and adopt an Ordinance officially closing the 
following streets: Dakota Avenue (From East Fourth Street to East Fifth Street); and, East Fifth Street (From Humphrey 
Street to Dakota Avenue). 

In addition to closing the streets referenced above, the City of Goldsboro would reserve a utility easement over Dakota 
Avenue for an existing 6-inch water line and an existing 8-inch sewer line.  In addition, the City of Goldsboro would reserve 
a utility easement over Fifth Street for an existing 6-inch water line and an existing 8-inch sewer line. 

Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. No one spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Polack to adopt the ordinance officially closing Dakota Avenue and East 
Fifth Street, as stated in the memo. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried.  Council 
adopted the following entitled Ordinance. 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-5 “AN ORDINANCE ORDERING THE CLOSING OF PORTIONS OF CERTAIN STREETS 
WITHIN THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 

 
Public Comment Period. Mayor Ham opened the public comment period. The following people spoke:  

1. Rovarian Taylor shared comments regarding a Study Hall Initiative at Ashford’s Boxing Club (at T.C. Coley 
Center) and requested a work order at the Center be expedited.   

2. April Rojas shared comments regarding the newsletter and comments made by a city employee. She also 
shared concerns about yard debris not being picked up.  

 
No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.  
 
Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. City Manager Tim Salmon presented the Consent Agenda.  All 

items were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a 
Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered 
separately. In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call vote. 
Mayor Pro Tem Polack moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items D - M be approved as recommended by the City 
Manager and staff.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor.  Councilwoman Matthews shared comments 
regarding the policy related to workers compensation insurance. After further discussion, a roll call vote resulted in the 



6 of 10 
 

following vote: Mayor Ham, Mayor Pro Tem Polack, Councilman Broadaway, and Councilman Gaylor voted for the 
motion. Councilwoman Jones and Councilwoman Matthews voted against the motion. The motion passed 4:2.  

 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:  
 

Nonprofit Funding Policy (FINPOL-N001) Adoption. Policy and Resolution Adopted. In the FY2022-23 budget 
process, the City initiated changes to implement a more formal process to apply, approve and fund nonprofits performing 
contracted services for the City. 

  
At this time, it is necessary for Council to review and approve the attached Nonprofit Funding Policy (FINPOL-N001) so 
that Finance may carry out the funding process for the nonprofits.  This also formally establishes the process that will be 
used for the FY2023-24 annual budget cycle. 

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution for the Nonprofit Funding Policy (FINPOL-N001). 
Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Gaylor (4 Ayes: 2 Nays) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-2 “RESOLUTION ADOPTING A POLICY FOR NONPROFIT FUNDING (FINPOL-N001)” 

 
CDBG Public Services Policy. Policy Adopted. The City receives federal funds to administer CDBG and HOME 

programs to assist low to moderate income persons with housing and non-housing needs.   
     

Public services are an integral part of the comprehensive community development strategy and can address a range of 
individual needs and increase the impact of CDBG funds.  Public services can strengthen communities by addressing the 
needs of specific populations and by supporting economic development.  CDBG regulations allow the use of grant funds for 
a wide range of public services activities, including, but not limited to: childcare, health care, job training, recreation 
programs, education programs, and many others.   

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the CDBG Public Services Policy. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Gaylor (4 
Ayes: 2 Nays) 

 
CDBG Rehabilitation Program Procedures Manual. Manual Adopted. The City receives federal funds to 

administer CDBG and HOME programs to assist low to moderate income persons with housing and non-housing needs.   
 

The purpose of the CDBG Rehabilitation Program is to foster and maintain affordable, decent, safe, and sanitary housing in 
the city.  The program is available to eligible low-to-moderate income owner-occupied single residence homes within the 
city limits.   Assistance to approved owner-occupied single-family homeowners will be provided in the form of 0% interest, 
deferred payment loans, not to exceed a maximum of $30,000.  The loan will have an affordability period of five (5) years 
and will be forgiven at a rate of twenty (20) percent per year.   

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the CDBG Rehabilitation Program Procedures Manual. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Polack/Gaylor (4 Ayes: 2 Nays) 

 
Approve Facility Use Lease for Balanced Choice Vending LLC at Goldsboro Golf & Event Center. Resolution 

Adopted. The City of Goldsboro was approached by Balanced Choice Vending LLC with a request to lease space and 
kitchen equipment at the Goldsboro Golf Course. 

 
The space needed is located at 1501 South Slocumb Street, Goldsboro, NC, the southeastern Golf Course Kitchen/Bar area 
and the equipment is listed on the attached contract exhibit 1 “Building”. 

  
Balanced Choice Vending LLC is a full line vending company, and their goal is to serve and support the City of Goldsboro 
through job creation for residents, paid summer jobs for youth, youth programs, and to support the City of Goldsboro in any 
additional way possible through its resources.  

 
Balanced Choice Vending LLC will prepare and sell meals at Fair Market Value to the community.  

  
Pursuant to NCGS 160A-272, notice was provided in the Goldsboro News Argus on December 22, 2022. 

 
It was recommended that Council approve the following entitled resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 
lease agreement with Balanced Choice Vending LLC for the kitchen lease.  Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Gaylor (4 
Ayes: 2 Nays) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-3 “RESOLUTION APPROVING A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH BALANCED CHOICE 
VENDING LLC.” 

 
Contract Award for 2023 Public Safety Complex HVAC Boiler Replacement Project. Resolution Adopted. The 

Public Safety Complex Boiler is original to the 1975 construction of the building.  The casing on the boiler is rusted through 
and leaks when shut down. The boiler inspector has warned it will be deemed unsafe if it leaks during operation. It was 
determined that replacement of the system is warranted before it fails. 



7 of 10 
 

 
Funds were budgeted in FY2023 for the replacement of the Boiler system. 

 
Bids were invited and due on Thursday, September 8, 2022 at 2:00 pm for the replacement of the Public Safety Complex 
HVAC Boiler System. Three submittals were received and tabulated as follows: 

    
Name of Bidder     Amount of Bid 
Hoffman Mechanical Solutions   $   99,469.06 
Dail Mechanical, Inc.     $ 170,500.00 
Piedmont Services Group    $ 170,771.00 
 

The purpose work consists of replacing the HVAC boiler and pump for Public Safety Complex, startup of the new boiler, 
and integration into existing controls. 

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract 
with Hoffman Mechanical Solutions in the amount of $ 106,183.22, bid price plus sale & use tax, for the Public Safety 
Complex HVAC Boiler Replacement Project. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Gaylor (4 Ayes: 2 Nays) 

 
RESOLUTION NO.2023-4 “RESOLUTION AWARDING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT FOR 
PUBLIC SAFTEY COMPLEX BOILER REPLACEMENT PROJECT” 

 
Ratifying a Lease Agreement to use the Wayne County Law Enforcement Officer’s Association Firearms 

Range. Resolution Adopted.  The City of Goldsboro Police Department entered into an agreement with the Wayne County 
Law Enforcement Officer’s Association, Inc. and the County of Wayne, to use of the Wayne County Law Enforcement 
Officer’s Association, Inc. Firearms Range on January 1, 2021. The City has shared in this lease agreement since the late 
1980’s. The range is approximately 2.067 acres and is located at 440 Old Mt. Olive Hwy. Dudley, NC.   

 
The Wayne County Law Enforcement Officer’s Association, Inc. Firearms Range serves a dual purpose for the sworn 
personnel of the Goldsboro Police Department. The lease agreement allows sworn personnel to practice firearm training on 
designated open range schedules as well as qualify/requalify annually as mandated by NC Department of Justice for all 
sworn personnel. 

  
The lease requires both participating agencies to work harmoniously with schedule procedures, assigning designated “range 
officers” who are certified firearm instructors, who will assist with coordinating use of the range. Maintenance of the range 
will be the responsibility of the City of Goldsboro on the odd number years and the County of Wayne on the even number 
years. 

 
The lease holds both participating agencies responsible for maintaining their own insurance coverage for their LE officers 
and agree to indemnify and hold the Wayne County Law Enforcement Officer’s Association, Inc. and the property of the 
Association, to include the premises, free and harmless of all claims. 

  
The City and County will pay the sum of $3,500.00 annually from January 1, 2021 until December 31, 2026. 

    
It was recommended that Council approve the following entitled resolution ratifying the authorization for the Chief of 
Police to have executed the agreement and approving the agreement with the Wayne County Law Enforcement Officer’s 
Association, Inc. for the use of firearms training for GPD sworn personnel. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Gaylor (4 
Ayes: 2 Nays) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023–5 “RESOLUTION RATIFYING A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH WAYNE COUNTY LAW 
ENFORCEMENT OFFICER’S ASSOCIATION, INC.” 

 
Non-Contiguous (Satellite) Annexation Petition – Chad Post; 2853 US HWY. 70 W. Located on the southwest 

corner of US Hwy. 70 W. and NC 581 Hwy. Referred to the Clerk. The applicant is requesting that non-contiguous 
property described by metes and bounds in Item 2 of the attached petition be annexed to the City of Goldsboro.  Maps 
showing the property proposed to be annexed are attached. City council approved the change of zone request (Z-18-22) for 
the above property from Wayne County Community Shopping (CS) to General Business Conditional Zoning District 
(GBCZD) to allow the operation of a convenience store and gas station on September 6, 2022.   

 
Area:  106,121 sq. ft. or 2.43 acres 

 
Pursuant to G.S. 160A-58, City Council shall fix a date for public hearing on the proposed annexation if the petition is 
considered sufficient by the City Clerk.  Sufficiency requires the City Clerk to make the following findings: 

 
1. The nearest point on the proposed satellite corporate limits must be not more than three miles from the primary 

corporate limits of the annexing city; 
 
2. No point on the proposed satellite corporate limits may be closer to the primary corporate limits of another city 

than to the primary corporate limits of the annexing city; 



8 of 10 
 

 
3. The area must be situated that the annexing city will be able to provide the same services within the proposed 

satellite corporate limits that it provides within its primary corporate limits; 
 
4. The area within the proposed satellite corporate limits, when added to the area within all other satellite corporate 

limits, may not exceed 10% of the area within the primary corporate limits of the annexing city. 
 

The City Council, at their meeting on January 23, 2023 would request the City Clerk to determine the sufficiency of the 
petition.   If the petition is determined to be sufficient, a public hearing would be scheduled and a report would be prepared 
by the Planning Department, in conjunction with other City departments, for submission to the Council. 

 
It was recommended that Council request the City Clerk examine the annexation petition to determine its sufficiency.  
Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Gaylor (4 Ayes: 2 Nays) 

 
Contiguous Annexation Petition – JD Gupta.  Located on the south side of W. New Hope Rd. between 

Somervale Ln. and Twin Oaks Pl.  Referred to the Clerk. The applicant is requesting that contiguous property described 
by metes and bounds in Item 2 of the attached petition be annexed into the City of Goldsboro.   

 
Maps showing the property proposed to be annexed are attached. City Council approved the change of zone request for the 
above subject properties on June 6, 2022 from Residential (R16) to Residential (R12CZ) limiting the property to a 62-lot 
residential cluster subdivision.  

 
Pursuant to G.S. 160A-31, City Council shall fix a date for public hearing on the proposed annexation if the petition is 
considered sufficient by the City Clerk.   

 
The City Council, at their meeting on January 23, 2023, would request the City Clerk to determine the sufficiency of the 
petition.   If the petition is determined to be sufficient, a public hearing would be scheduled and a report would be prepared 
by the Planning Department, in conjunction with other City departments, for submission to the Council. 

 
It was recommended that Council request the City Clerk examine the annexation petition to determine its sufficiency.  
Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Gaylor (4 Ayes: 2 Nays) 

 
Advisory Board and Commission Appointments. Resolution Adopted. There are currently several vacancies on 

Advisory Boards and Commissions.  Citizen involvement is vital to the performance of City government.  It is necessary 
that additional appointments be made to fill these vacancies.   

 
Recommendations for appointments were requested from the respective Boards and Commissions.  Applications were also 
solicited from the public at large.  

 
The City Council met during the Work Session on January 9, 2023, to review vacancies and applications received to fill the 
current vacancies. With these appointments, two alternate positions on the Historic District Commission remain.  

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Resolution appointing members to various Advisory Boards 
and Commissions in the City of Goldsboro. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Gaylor (4 Ayes: 2 Nays) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-6 “RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS” 

 
Departmental Monthly Reports. Accepted as Information.  The various departmental reports for December 2022 

were submitted for Council approval. It was recommended that Council accept the reports as information. Consent Agenda 
Approval. Polack/Gaylor (4 Ayes: 2 Nays) 

 
End of Consent Agenda. 
 
City Manager’s Report. Tim Salmon congratulated the Housing Authority for receiving the HUD Choice 

Neighborhoods Planning Grant of $500,000 to transform the West Haven Apartments into high quality mixed income 
housing. City staff is excited to work with the Housing Authority and other teammates to obtain the $50 million dollar grant 
that would make that happen.   

 
Ceremonial Documents. 
Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Melvin Dawson as An Employee of the City of 

Goldsboro for More Than 20 Years.  Resolution Adopted. Melvin Dawson retires on February 1, 2023 as a Traffic 
Signal Technician II, with more than 20 years of service, with the Engineering Department. Melvin began his career on 
December 4, 2002 as a Building and Traffic Maintenance Worker with the Public Works Department. On May 12, 2004, 
Melvin was promoted to Radio Signal Technician with the Public Works Department. On April 25, 2007, Melvin was 
promoted to Senior Building and Traffic Maintenance with the Public Works Department. On February 3, 2010, Melvin was 
transferred to Signal System Maintenance Technician with the Public Works Department. On July 9, 2014, Melvin was 
transferred to the Engineering Department. On February 23, 2022, Melvin was reclassified as Traffic Signal Technician II 
with the Engineering Department, where he has served until his retirement. Melvin has proven himself to be a dedicated and 



9 of 10 
 

efficient public servant who has gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of 
Goldsboro. The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of themselves, City employees, 
and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Melvin Dawson their deep appreciation and gratitude for the 
service rendered by him to the City over the years and express to Melvin Dawson our very best wishes for success, 
happiness, prosperity, and good health in his future endeavors. 

 
This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full force and effect 
from and after this 23rd day of January, 2023. 

 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Polack to adopt the retirement resolution. The motion was seconded by 

Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried.  Council adopted the following entitled Resolution. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-7 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY MELVIN 
DAWSON AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 20 YEARS” 

 
American Heart Month Proclamation.  Read by Mayor Pro Tem Polack; The Goldsboro City Council proclaimed 

the month of February 2023 as AMERICAN HEART MONTH in Goldsboro, North Carolina and called upon the people of 
Goldsboro to increase their awareness and understanding of heart disease and to observe this month with appropriate 
activities and programs. 

 
Year of the Trail Proclamation. Read by Councilman Broadaway; The Goldsboro City Council proclaimed 2023 as 

the YEAR OF THE TRAIL in collaboration with the members of the Great Trails State Coalition. 
 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Comments. 
Councilman Gaylor shared the following comments: the Downtown Development office, I just want to say thank you 

to you for your work pulling together this parking meeting on Thursday. It's my understanding that did not begin as a 
council initiative, that did not begin as us calling a council meeting. That the amount of interest that the council has in the 
general public and seeing this, resulted in the law requiring us to have it be listed as a special called meeting. I think that 
speaks very well to the amount of interest and the importance of our MSD, of our downtown, and of the economic 
development, of the economic impact that it has on our city. I would remind everyone that we only have one meeting in 
February and March, but we do have our Board retreat. A number of folks in the district have reached out to ask about the 
agenda for the Board retreat and asked if there were specific things that could be put on there. Anyone else that has 
anything, it's just a simple thing please shoot me an e-mail so that I know and then it's something that we can discuss as a 
Council or with Mayor Ham to see if it's something they can fit on the agenda. I know it's going to be a very busy couple of 
days and that's February 22nd and 23rd and it's already been published.   

 
Councilwoman Matthews shared the following comments: I do want to kind of make one correction about what was 

said, and it was because I hear a lot of different feedback from different things that we do at the city. The mayor made it 
very clear in an e-mail or, the city manager does a weekly report, and a report came out back in October, November that 
there was some talk about a parking discussion and having a meeting. I then reached out to the mayor and asked if it would 
not be a special called meeting because I was under the assumption that the mayor thought that this was very necessary to 
discuss. Conversations went on, I sent the mayor an e-mail asking that this not be a City Council or even a mayor led 
initiative due to a conflict of interest, bias, and all of the things above. The mayor then responded to me and let me know 
that this was an issue that needed to be, wait, let me back up little bit. So, I told him that several issues come before the City 
Council, we have presentations almost, we had 2-3 tonight. They come before the board and then we are at then, responsible 
for making the decision if necessary and I didn't think it was appropriate for us to participate in that regard. I think we have 
several downtown entities who are more than capable of leading the charge and coming up with a plan and presenting it to 
council like they have done so many other times. The mayor then told me that this meeting deserves some special 
considerations, we use those type of terminologies, you have another group of people who do not feel included in that plan 
and those are oftentimes the people that I serve.  When I'm asking these questions it's not just Brandy asking the question, 
I'm asking those questions for those persons that I represent and as much as we have tried to do this, everybody is affected 
by XYZ, this did not come about because everybody was affected. This is not how this thing started and I just wanted to 
clarify that because the mayor was very clear even before it went to council that he was going to have a meeting about the 
parking downtown. My only concern is that we too take very special interests to all the other issues that are going on in our 
city that affect other people than certain groups of people. I just want us to be fair that was what the context of my e-mail 
was to the council members some of which have still not responded to that e-mail. I just want to be very clear and 
transparent that when we're doing stuff, I don't care how you fix it up, how you try to clarify, the facts are the facts, and it 
was very disappointing that this now is being blanket covered, the fact that it's interest and we're we have to fall in line with 
special meeting law and regulations. We all know that there's more than four of us in one place in that type of setting, we 
have to call a special meeting, but this was going to be a special meeting rather we were all there or not and that is the thing 
that concerns me and that is what I want to be clear. I don't care how our city staff, the mayor, or the council members try to 
clear it up. I plan to attend on Thursday because I go downtown all the time and Erin made a good point, it is a good 
problem to have but I want to make sure that we're doing what's in the best interest of not just the city, not just specific or 
two or three business owners who want special accommodations. I want to ensure that we're doing the right thing for 
everybody if in fact everybody are stakeholders, if in fact everybody's affected by this issue. I'm holding the board 
accountable to say there was a lot of passion from our mayor about this parking. He was very passionate, very adamant 
about it in the e-mail that he sent to me and the special consideration that this issue needed. So, I am hoping that we have 



1• 

0

y0

N

cna y ° 

3

o

A

o   

y

C3

a 

L00

y

O

En

P. 

O

0

t47. 

3

O

0-
4

U

C13

cd

y

y

y

3

arn

CIJ04

y

N

O

cd

C

y

Ste. 

y 

0

rn

to

y

4

Cd

o  

o .

cz

rn

U

4,•' 

N

n

U

N

14,

g.
I

3

0

tv

se

czto

UO0
b ° 

c 

O
c

f. 

to

O

A

J-
1

N

V1

rn

C

0

a

x

i.. 

rn

p  

U

O

U

O

O

cd •

y

rn

CZ

En

obArl

a0i  

yr7

C • 

o

O

s.. 

P., •

yy

0   

U

O

O

N

3

0

o

o

yO

3

O

0

cG

U

CIJ04O

cd

C

to

y

4

Cd

p

O

O

O

rOi, 

O

O

tv

se

n >, 

b

aO • 

C13.

V. 

O

yy

y

O ^ 

0 . 

N

o

O

o

c 

CCO

0> 

Y

1 

bD

3

i-

1

Vao
Qr

ai

Vczw44

0. 

U

AO

vi

b

U .

s: 

040C'

jbA
O

oU

3

s

p

3

y

a 

a 

W  

3U

N

O

rrnn

O

O

p '- 

N

0

037Ebcl 

3€

3° 

3

6 " 
4-
4

O

O '

C

O

b'

0

v 

ca

p

to _

O

O

4, 

O ~ 

0. 

y . 

bA

O

bU

U

y • 

o

tv'i, 

N

Q). 

rn

73

rn

c .

Q

rn

vU, 

O •

4

N +-' 

T3 •

Zy  ' 

t 

04 . 

M

C;

3

b4

01

3'

n

O

a; 

rn

rn '

b

bA

cC

o

co

to

O

O. 

U

0

bOA

Orn

Q" 

Q

y 

yy

O + 

rn

04 .

d

N

C41

CC

rn

Cd

a  

o

vi '

t7

y

eC

cd

cq3

U, 

yyy

V

O '

C

O

C8

O

s: 

cz

ocq3kyr' 
N

4. = 

O

bA

0 ''' , 

r

p

o .

d 

e :

fl ° 

o

Q. 

o

COIn
y

O

rz

oQ..+ 
p

N +' 

O . .- 

co

to

cd

to

N

q '

C

y

0

C;

s > 

ti

a >, 

cz

o

LP,, 

o

j> . 

C,

0

3

3

yY

u0

0

y

O

y

0

C013

U5

0

CO

cz> 

cdA

o  

o

Z-

0

o  

O

O

1_

0OO
m

to

to

C,

3

U



1 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
JANUARY 26, 2023 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, held a Special Meeting called by Mayor Ham to discuss 
downtown parking at the Wayne County Museum, 116 North William Street, at 5:30 p.m. on Thursday, January 26, 2023. 

Call to Order.  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:41 p.m. 

Roll Call. 

Present:  Mayor David Ham, Presiding 
Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack (arrived at 5:51 p.m.) 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones (arrived at 5:41 p.m.) 
Councilman Bill Broadaway 
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews 

Absent: Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV 
Councilman Greg Batts 

Also Present:   Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Matt Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Laura Getz, City Clerk 

Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:41 p.m. when Councilwoman Jones arrived, which created a special meeting 
(the mayor and 3 councilmembers present). 

Erin Fonseca, Downtown Development Director introduced Mr. Dwight Bassett, Director of Economic Development and 
Parking Services for the Town of Chapel Hill. Mr. Bassett presented the following presentation and opened the meeting 
up for discussion and questions.   

There were approximately 60 people in attendance (to include the mayor, council, city staff, downtown business owners, 
downtown property owners, downtown residents and Goldsboro citizens). Discussions focused on the parking options 
presented.     

Item A2



2 
 

    

   

   

    

    



E[;{ f[)

f

k)\ 

kw
coE

kk/$ƒ; 
m

A2U
Uq

S

Ar

X

k

3

2

2

e

Q

Q

2

m

A2UUq2

2

U

x

X

k

m







Item C



Item D



F

Continued to March 20, 2023





















Item _______ 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
FEBRUARY 6, 2023 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING & DECISION 
Z-31-22 Habitat for Humanity of Goldsboro-Wayne (Residential 9 to 
Residential 6) – East side of Dr. H.E. McNair St. 

ADDRESS: Dr. H.E. McNair St. 

PARCEL #: 3509207242 

PROPERTY OWNER: Irma B. Wiggins & Kimberly S. Lane 

APPLICANT: Habitat for Humanity of Goldsboro-Wayne 

BACKGROUND: The applicant is requesting a rezoning from the Residential 9 (R-9) Zoning 
District to the Residential 6 (R-6) Zoning District. The purpose of the 
Residential 6 (R-6) Zoning District is to accommodate both single and 
multi-family residential uses and to prohibit all activities of a commercial 
nature.  

Density: 6,000 square feet for the first unit and 2,000 square feet for 
each additional unit. 

Access:  Dr. H.E. McNair St. (Two other potential points of access exist off 
Dexter St. right-of-way (unimproved) and Berry St.)  

 Area: 24.5 acres 

Maximum Density: approximately 425 units (this calculation includes the 
20% open space calculation) 

SURROUNDING 

ZONING:           North: Residential 6 

 South: Residential 9 & Office and Institutional 1 

East: Residential 9 

West: Residential 6 

Existing Use:  The property is currently vacant. 

Land Use Plan Recommendation:  The City’s Land Use Plan locates this 
parcel within the High-Density Residential land use designation.  

G







tD

N

E1

a) 

a) 

A

a

N

OC

aJ

4- 

O

C

v

O

a

v

t

O

L

t

Q

v

a 

C `— 

ofu
v

Z

O

Q

N

p

bA

O

Z

E

O

C

a, 

C

C

Q- 

to

cb

L

N

dA

C

O

v

OL

L

a

cu

y +' 

O

a1

co

cu

f6

v

p

O

Q

E

Q

CC

L

t

o

C

JO

3

u_ 

O

o

co

a, 

roa

v

o

bA

to

vL

aaJ

41

u

3

m

L

Q

d

t

O

a n

L

ca

c

a

t

uaL 

mO

drLl

OQ

0

C

t

C

cu

E

v

a1

acu
Ua> 

Ly

N

4-
1NO

Ov

O

Q

J

UF- 

O

V) 

m

C

n

tO

O++ 

ro

W

p

bD

p

N

Ov

O

M

NC. 

O

O

U

v

E

0

tO

0

0

O

v

en

U

E

E

U

M

m

LO

C7

cn

C

N

3

co

N

O

f0

O

bA

O

O

N

N

a) 

Q1

a) 

O

in

in

N

C

L

U

O

O

Q

o

N

C

pU

bD

of

LA

L

QE

U

Z

l7

Z

bA

O

t6

bA

O

JC

C

C

v, 

cut

3

L

U

N

Z

J

U

W

C

Q

aJ

s ' 

C

U

U

J

t

on

w

U

Z

O

O

L -

pL

C

a

a1

O

O

L

ro

O

V

C

v

II°^ 

V

Q

U

C

cu

Q 

N

L

0  

Q

N

U

O

O

i

C

d

C7

io

0

w

N

Q

U

N

O

z

Q

m

C 

M

aJ

v- 

W

O

i' 

m

bn

L

o

C

L

E

p

Q

C

C

LL
4-- 

O

S

O

t

U

Ccu

C

C

t

a) cn

byC

CO

in

Wz

lb

OC

U

aJ

j. 

bD

Ja

E

OL -

aN

aJa

CO

OL

a

C

w

4- 

OU

O

aJ

a

4Q

LLO

bA

co . 

O

N

N

Q

O

v

O> 

O

p

C

Ln

p

E

inO

aJ

l0

O

N

C

U

L

C

C

J

C20

cn

C

m

m

ro

U

t

Ln

aW H

cu

s

CO

m

L

n

CO

LnO

3

o

U

Q
4a 

U

mv

ZN
C

O

O

p

bn

y

E

m

pU
N

0

to

i0if3

0

O

O

O

w4- 

W

Z

L" aJ

C '

N

t

OM

m

OLn

U

M

Q

w

a) 

La) 
Q

O

Q

L

in ++ 

O

W

a

m

aJ

2

aJ

O

a) 

aJ

a) 

Q) L

a1

0

T+ 

tJ

a

m

w

to

Z

i

2

a 

a

O

m

C

m

E +, 

U

Wcc

t!

i

v

a

O

to3

N
L

V1

N

vi
a, O

Ln

vi
N

O

N

m

WU

aM°

C

aa, 

a 

a•

b, 

a

n

a 

C

aoa, 
a

U

La,+ 

s

t

Z

W

2

C

CO

W

W

W

W

a 

W

WL
W

M }' 

a

W

m

W

f6

L

W

aJ

W

C

W

L

0

f0

S

U

W

bn

Q

3

z

cr-O

O

O

bAU
CO

ri

O

O

6

aJ

aJV

a)

Z

t +

a,) 

a

u

CN

cncu

C

CCU

C

L

U

2

U

0

a

U

1

w

H

on

O
4-

N

tD

N

E1









CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

FEBRUARY 6, 2023 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING & DECISION 
Z-1-23 Harry & Mollie, LLC (IBP-1 to GB) – East side of McLain Street 
between Oak Forest Road and East Ash Street Extension.   

PARCEL #: 3519905459 (portion of) 

PROPERTY OWNER/APPLICANT: Harry & Mollie, LLC. 

BACKGROUND: The applicant is requesting a rezoning for a 4.27-acre portion of a parcel 
from Industrial Business Park (IBP-1) to the General Business (GB) Zoning 
District. The General Business (GB) Zoning District is established to 
accommodate the widest range of uses providing general goods and 
services to the community. The intent of this district is to promote high 
quality, accessible developments serving the needs of the community and 
surrounding area.     

Area: 176.09 acres (parent parcel) 4.27 acres (portion proposed for 
rezoning)         

SURROUNDING 

ZONING:           North: General Business (GB) 

 South: General Business (GB) 

East: Industrial Business Park (IBP-1) 

West: General Business (GB) 

Existing Use:  The portion of the parcel proposed to be rezoned is 
currently vacant and utilized for agricultural purposes. 

Land Use Plan Recommendation:  The City’s Land Use Plan locates this 
parcel within the Industrial land use designation.  

Industrial: This designation was developed to establish and protect 
industrial areas for the use of prime industrial operations and for the 
distribution of products at wholesale.  

The General Business (GB) Zoning District is not a corresponding zoning 
district within the Industrial land-use designation. 

DISCUSSION: As previously stated, this is a rezoning proposal for a 4.27 acre portion of 
a parcel of property totaling 176.09 acres to be rezoned from Shopping 
Center (SC) and Industrial Business Park (IBP-1) to General Business (GB) 
Zoning District. Despite the fact that the portion of the parcel is located in 
the Industrial land-use designation, development trends indicate that the 
proposed General Business (GB) Zoning District would be compatible with 

Item H







1MNON

a

0

z

CLO

m

O

On

On

0— 

s

2

c

U

v

ON

O

O

O

OO

OCL

NN

aS

a) 

O

4 , IA

c

m

0

a

m

O

C7

M

a

y

OA

L

L.
m

3

0

t

L

O

OE

aL. 
y

mw

O
N

E

dl7

i

m

ti4 — 

a= 

O

a

Q

O

a

a

m

7O

a

0

O

c

a= 

w_

j

c

c

Q) 

a

s

co

a

3

a

N

n °

A

a-

0= 

vOi

N

a) 

QJ

UL

Q

3

CN

m

O

v

to

m

3

E

O

0 •_ 

L > 

C

a

O

O

m

E

2

m

a

m

L

u

c

a

3

o

p

m

E

v

o

n

i° 

c

aa))  

n=
i

m °__° 

v

IA

J

L

X

U

4- 

cu

tin +- 

u

O

m

m

o

4- 

41

m

toc

a) t

N

t

m

t

a

L

a

a

O

Z

m

U

0

E '' 

c= O

N

CLc

CO

Um

O

aE

4141

O

O +' 

4- 

L

J

Z

a

0

N

a .-

i

L

a

S

a

Ln

o
4- 

O

c

NVf

c

Q '
n

m

In

U +

L

U

O

N

O

O

L

aa

a

a

v

O= 

a

N

L

L > 

4' 

m

In

4- 

F, 

m

a  

O "

a

v ° 

0 +, 

c

CL

L

a "

a

O

c

a

O

of

p

c

7

a

s

L-+, 

O

u

Oon
t `° 

v.

S

p

0 }- 

is

v

m

mc

3

C

4- 

Q

O

a

J

N

L

O

dQ

to

L

w

0

m

m

L

m

Z

o

O

a

O

O

a

c -

0

o

o

v

m

c

E

N

v '

L

on

o

UA .

0

CO

L

N

N

0

L

0

C .= 

O

c

Q

c= 

4

N

Ln

O '

A

LIP) 

U

p

c

N

c 

6

H

U +' 

u

m

c

c

coCE

U'° 

Q

O

4 +, 

a

O

m

0 +' 

L

O

L

O

a

O

LL

m

o

r 

0

0

N

Q) 

c

c° 

m

o

L > 

O , 

a '

O

E

a

O
0

c- 

3

n +' 
4- — 

U

pD

NC

t

c

J

O

0

c

c

an

d

0

0 ' 

on

c

N +' 

m

J

Ln

bo

0 , 

aD

N

aA

1y

In

m

O

0

7 ' + 

U

p

O

lC

C

mC -

0

0) 

N

O

a

O

7Co

c

v

v0iO

L- 

m

o

N

4- 

a

U

O

UL = 

o

u1

Ln

m

m

O

V) 

N

U

a> 

a

L)

H

M

v- 
0: 

Q

C -

0

m

N 

Q

N

U

N

m

0

U

c0

O

O

a

O

Ip

Ou

a

Q

m

N

L

a

a

L

O

11

i+ 

U

C

a

0

U

qA

v

O

J

Q

V

a

L- 

a

vi °) 

LL

U

L

N

U

mo

L

m .

Y

Qi

f6

v

a — 

au

u

CU

m

ai

on

a

p

m

0

2

m

c

m

m

L

m

m

Z

a

p

Ip

m

a

C

4

0

c

Q

7 = 

a° ' L

L0

Q

m

Q

Q

Q

a

m

A

Q> 

Q

c

Q

Q

of

J

U

w

to

O

m

a

0

w

d

on

w

0a

w

eO

w

OA

iri

w

w + 

w

w

a

2

3

w

L

C

i

OC

X .

c

w

m

c

w = 

w

I..

1

ww

c

r

w

a

w

w- 

a> 

w

E

Vf

mS
0_ 

2 '

3

N

O

c

a

0

0 • 

cli

U

0

t

ao

C7

00

m

v= 

c

v, 

J

N

c• 0

c

a -

0

o

y

a

c

o 

a

a

v

O

0

a

n

C

O

m *_' 

O

o

O

O

kn

a

O

m

t

t

m +' 

0

U-

0

a

U

a

m

m

O

O "

O

U

N

ill

0zO02

C

O

O

O

OO

O
CL

WI

aS

OCL

4 , IA

3

V

v

M

may

OA

L

L.

m

O

OE

aL. 
y

mw

ON

E

dl7

i

Ian

U

TmN

Q) 

a

s

co

a

m

CO

In

i

OU -

O

OCa

m

CN

E

to

m

Z

a

a

4+ 

O

O

m

E

2

m

O
4 

m

41

m

ons
m

IA

v

C

i°

v

t

a

vJ

v

a

IA

J

L

X

U

wC

J

O

m

m

o

41

m

m

L

CO

o

t

4141

Ln

H

ma

3

a

m

a

Ln

c

m

O

co' 

E

E

N

On

a .

1

r-, 

O

Il

U. 

N

f` 

M

0U

N

ill











I





hjones
Pencil



hjones
Pencil



hjones
Pencil



















J



I

4-
4

C4-
4

ti

3

4.

4(

Do
E

Ln

O

O  

N • 

O

Ln > 

A

03zIn

A 

w

U 

cn

cqs

o •

3

Cd "

I= 

o

Q)

o

ellO
a? 

NO  

O

O

O

O

W

o

Cd

a

a

ti

ov

b) 

C'

s

O

ct

ua

v 

03

v

v 

W

U

in

3°' 

al

O

O

w ¢ 

w  

U

C7

G

a

W

V

C

06

06

06

06

boa

00

o0

C

N

N

N

N

QQ C

EA
4

69

69

G

a

0

0

0

0

0606

0606

boa

00

o0

b

oo

oo

00

00

u

C

v

f 

kW

O

U

sus

bs

cys

v 

G

a

0

0

0

0

0606

0606

oa

00

o0

u

C

v

f 

kW

O

U

sus

bs

cys

v 

G

a

b

u

C

v
f 

kW

O

G

a



K





RESOLUTION NO. 2023- t
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE

UTILITY CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT WITH NCDOT FOR WATER & SEWER LINE

RELOCATIONS FOR US 70 BUSINESS ( GRANTHAM STREET) 
NCDOT PROJECT B- 4838

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Transportation has prepared and

adopted plans to make street and highway improvements within Goldsboro for replacing
Bridge No. 20 on US 70 Business ( Grantham Street); and

WHEREAS, said Department of Transportation and the City of Goldsboro propose
to enter into an utility construction agreement whereby said Department will include in
its construction contract provisions for the relocation and adjustment of municipally - 
owned water and sewer lines; and, 

WHEREAS, the estimated construction cost of the above -referred to water and
sanitary sewer improvements is $ 154, 228; and

WHEREAS, the Municipality agrees to reimburse the Department of Transportation
up to $ 154, 228 with reimbursement to be made in one final payment within sixty ( 60) 
days after billing; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute the utility construction
agreement with the Department of Transportation for relocation and adjustment of
municipally -owned water and sewer lines in conjunction with replacement of Bridge No. 
20 on US 70 Business ( Grantham Street). 

3. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
6th

day of
February, 2023. 

Jll

Attested by: q

y pj5

Laura Getz, City Clerk`` 



L



















P a g e  1 | 2 

Item _______ 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
February 6, 2023 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Split-Jurisdiction Agreement between the City of Goldsboro and 
County of Wayne 

Tax Parcel Id:  3610-97-5195 

Owner:  Roy Barnes Heirs 

Acres:  11.3; 6 acres (County of Wayne)/5 acres (City of 
Goldsboro) 

BACKGROUND: On September 6, 2022 City Council approved a Resolution 
Authorizing by Mutual Agreement Between the City of Goldsboro 
and the County of Wayne To Assign Exclusive Planning and 
Development Regulation Jurisdiction From One (the City of 
Goldsboro) to the Other (County of Wayne) pertaining to the 
subject property referenced above. 

Recently, City officials were informed that the Wayne County Tax 
Office identified errors in their database reflecting incorrect tax 
parcel identification numbers and property owners associated 
with the property.  As such, Goldsboro City Council and the 
County of Wayne are required to revise the split jurisdiction 
agreement. 

Zoning and other development regulations are state powers 
delegated to local governments.  North Carolina state legislature 
sets the rules for which local governments can exercise these 
powers and where that can be done within their respective 
jurisdictions. 

The City of Goldsboro exercises the enforcement of planning and 
development regulations throughout the corporate City limits and 
one-mile extra-territorial jurisdiction.  The County of Wayne 
exercises planning and development regulations outside of the 
City’s corporate limits and one-mile extra-territorial jurisdiction. 

City and County jurisdictional boundaries do not have to follow 
property lines.  In Wayne County, it is not uncommon for part of a 

M

Removed from Agenda





RESOLUTION NO. 2023 – 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING BY MUTUAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO AND THE COUNTY OF WAYNE TO ASSIGN EXCLUSIVE PLANNING AND 

DEVELOPMENT REGULATION JURISDICTION FROM ONE TO THE OTHER 
 

WHEREAS, NCGS 160D-203 allows if the landowner and both units of governments agree, a unit 
of government to assign exclusive planning and development regulation jurisdiction for an entire parcel to 
another unit of government; and 

 
WHEREAS, such mutual agreement shall only be applicable to development regulations and shall 

not affect the jurisdiction’s boundary lines, taxation or other nonregulatory matters; and 
 
WHEREAS, the mutual agreement on development regulation must be approved by a resolution 

formally adopted by both governing boards and be recorded with the Wayne County Register of Deeds 
within fourteen days of adoption of the last required resolution; and 

 
WHEREAS, the current landowner of Wayne County Parcel #3610975195 is R o y  B a r n e s  

H e i r s , consisting of approximately eleven (11) acres; and 
 
WHEREAS, currently the property has split jurisdiction between the City of Goldsboro and the 

County of Wayne whereby approximately six (6) acres lies within Wayne County jurisdiction and 
approximately five (5) acres lies in the City of Goldsboro jurisdiction as such are indicated on Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as the exact location and the split of jurisdictions 
as depicted thereon with the said portion #1 belonging to the County of Wayne and said portion #2 
belonging to the City of Goldsboro; and 

 
WHEREAS, the landowner desires that portion #2 of Exhibit “A” be assigned to the County of Wayne 

and that the County of Wayne have continuity in planning and development regulations across the entire 
parcel; and 

 
WHEREAS, the landowner requests that the City of Goldsboro agree to release their planning 

and development jurisdiction to the County of Wayne; and 
 
WHEREAS, the landowner requests that the County of Wayne agree to accept the planning and 

development jurisdiction from the City of Goldsboro. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Goldsboro and the County of Wayne do 

hereby accept this agreement and assign to the County of Wayne exclusive planning and development 
regulation for the said entirety of the above described parcel as affixed by the appropriate signatures of 
authority by the Mayor of the City of Goldsboro and the Chairman of the Wayne County Board of 
Commission. 

 
This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 6th day of February, 2023. 

 
 
 
__________________________    __________________________ 
David Ham, Mayor      Barbara Aycock, Chairman 
City of Goldsboro      Wayne County Board of Commissioners 
 
Attested by: 
 
 
________________________________   __________________________________ 
Laura Getz, Clerk, City of Goldsboro    Carol Bowden, Clerk, County of Wayne 







N



















RESOLUTION NO. 2023 — I
RESOLUTION APPROVING LEASE AGREEMENTS WITH ALFRED PARKS AND

SHAWN MITCHELL FOR FARMLAND TRACTS

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne jointly own Farms # 11693, # 8742, 
11850, # 11852 and # 6599; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro owns Farm # 12942; and

WHEREAS, these farms have been under 3 year leases beginning in 2013; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro accepted bids for lease terms on December 8, 2022, and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NC General Statute 160A- 272, staff is requesting that council
approve the lease agreements; and

WHEREAS, the Council hereby determines that the property to be leased will not be needed
by the City of Goldsboro during the term of the lease. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign a 3 - year lease agreement with Alfred Parks for
Farms # 11693, # 8742 and # 11850 upon approval by the Board of Commissioners of the
County of Wayne. 

2. The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign a 3 -year lease agreement with Shawn Mitchell for
Farms # 11852 and # 6599 upon approval by the Board of Commissioners of the County of
Wayne. 

3. The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign a 3 -year lease agreement with Shawn Mitchell for
Farm # 12942. 

4. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after February 6, 2023. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Clerk

Ham, Mayor



1 
 

 

NORTH CAROLINA 

WAYNE COUNTY 

 THIS FARM LEASE, made this _____ day of _______________, 20_____, between 

the  CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA, a North Carolina Municipal corporation 

in the County of Wayne, State of North Carolina, whose address is P. O. Drawer A, Goldsboro, 

NC  27533, and WAYNE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA, a North Carolina body politic and 

corporate, whose address is P. O. Box 227, Goldsboro, NC  27533, parties of the first part, and 

BERRY ALFRED PARKS, party of the second part; 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 That the parties of the first part do hereby lease and farm let to the party of the second 

part, its heirs and assigns, all of the certain farm(s) or tract(s) of land situated in Wayne County, 

North Carolina, and more particularly described as follows:   

 
1. Two Tracts on the West side of NC 111 South 

Being 56.3 acres of that tract of land known more particularly as Farm 
11693, Tract 8436 by the Wayne County Farm Service Agency. 
($156.50/Acre). Also being the property obtained by Grantor in Deed Book 
2486, Page 380 of the Wayne County Registry. 

 
2. Eastern End of Seymour Johnson Air Force Base, Just West of NC 111 

Being 24.2 acres of that tract of land known more particularly as Farm 8742, 
Tract 4492 by the Wayne County Farm Service Agency. ($156.50/Acre). 
Also being the property obtained by Grantor in Deed Book 2732, Page 899 
of the Wayne County Registry. 
 

3. Millers Chapel Road 
Being 5.1 acres of that tract of land known more particularly as Farm 11850, 
Tract 4334 by the Wayne County Farm Service Agency. ($95/Acre). Also 
being the property obtained by Grantor in Deed Book 2547, Page 187 of the 
Wayne County Registry. 

  

1. TERM.  The term of this lease shall be for the period from January 1, 2023, 
through December 31, 2025.  
 



2 
 

 2. RENTAL.  Based on the acreage included within each Farm and Tract, 

the yearly rental for the above listed properties is as follows: 

1. Two Tracts on the West side of NC 111 South, Goldsboro, NC 
($156.50/Acre) 

56.30 Acres @ $156.50/Acre  =  $8,810.95Year  

Total  $8,810.95/Year  
 

2. Eastern End of Seymour Johnson Air Force Base, Just West of 
NC 111, Goldsboro, NC ($156.50/Acre) 

24.20 Acres @ $156.50/Acre  =  $3,787.30/Year 

Total  $3,787.30/Year 
 

3. Millers Chapel Road, Goldsboro, NC ($80.00/Acre) 

5.10 Acres @ $95.00/Acre  =  $484.50/Year 

Total  $484.50/Year 

In addition to the rental costs hereinabove provided, the party of the second part shall 

pay all costs due the ASCS Office or any other regulatory agency for the cultivation and 

marketing of said crop. 

 3. PAYMENT OF RENTAL.  The TOTAL yearly rental of the above properties 

shall be the sum of $13,082.75. Said rental payment shall be submitted no later than January 

31st of each year of this Lease.   

 4. CLEARED LANDS.  The party of the second part shall be permitted to cultivate 

all cleared lands described herein.  

 5. VISIBILITY AND APPEARANCE.  The party of the second part shall maintain 

said land free and clear of the storage of equipment and signage.  Said land shall only be used 

for farming purposes.  The party of the second part shall maintain said land in a sightly 



3 
 

condition, shall disc and remove all farm products from said land no later than December 31, 

2025, and return said land to the party of the first part in a sightly condition at the end of this 

lease.  The lessee must keep all ditches cut and cleared of debris.  The lessee must mow any 

area around the track of land that is not being farmed.  

6. COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS.  The farm land hereinabove described 

may be subject to the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for the Seymour 

Johnson Air Force Base Buffer Project, CWMTF Project Nos. 2005A and 2004A-007 as 

recorded in Book 2485, Page 864, Wayne County Registry. 

7. SUBLEASES.  The lessee will not be permitted to sublease under their lease 

agreement with Wayne County.   

8.  CROP ROTATION REQUIREMENTS.  The agriculture producer will need to 

follow Best Management Practices (BMP’s) in regards to crop rotation.  During the three (3) 

year lease, the producer shall not grow more than one (1) tobacco crop and one (1) sweet potato 

crop.  It is recommended that the producer not grow the same grain crop two (2) years in a row.  

The lessee should have the soil tested and lime applied if needed within the three (3) year period 

of the lease. 

9. ASCS.  The parties of the first part and the party of the second part shall execute 

such instruments or other documents as may be required by the ASCS Office or any other 

regulatory agency to effect the terms of this lease for the farm years 2023-2025. 

 10. INDEMNITY.  The party of the second part shall indemnify and save harmless 

the parties of the first part from any claim arising out of its occupancy of said land or out of its 

farm operation, cultivation and marketing of said crop. 



4 
 

11. ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS.  If corn is planted on the subject 

property(ies), said property(ies) shall be disked in within seven (7) days after harvest.  Hunting 

shall be prohibited on the property at all times.  The agriculture producer will need to follow 

Best Management Practices (BMP’s) in regards to crop rotation.  During the three (3) year 

lease, the producer shall not grow more than one (1) tobacco crop and one (1) sweet potato 

crop.  It is recommended that the producer not grow the same grain crop two (2) years in a row.  

The lessee should have the soil tested and lime applied if needed with in the three (3) year 

period of the lease. 

 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, said parties have executed this lease in triplicate 

originals, one of which is retained by each of the parties, the day and year first above written.  

 

SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW ON ADDITIONAL PAGES



5 
 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________(SEAL) 
 David Ham, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Laura Getz, City Clerk 
 
 

NORTH CAROLINA 
WAYNE COUNTY 
 
 This the ________ day of ______________________, 20____, personally came before 

me, _____________________________, a Notary Public in and for said State and County, 

Laura Getz,  who by me duly sworn, says that she knows the common seal of the CITY OF 

GOLDSBORO and is acquainted with David Ham, who is the Mayor of said municipal 

corporation; that she, the said Laura Getz is its City Clerk; and that she saw the Mayor sign the 

foregoing instrument; and that she, the said City Clerk, saw the said common seal of said 

corporation affixed thereto, and that she, the said City Clerk, signed her name in attestation of 

said instrument in the presence of said Mayor of said municipal corporation. 

 
WITNESS my hand and official seal or stamp this the ______ day of _______________, 
20____. 
            
  
      ___________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
 
__________________ 
 

 

  



6 
 

COUNTY OF WAYNE 

 
BY: ________________________________(SEAL) 
 Barbara Aycock, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Carol Bowden, Clerk to the Board  
 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
WAYNE COUNTY 
 
 This the ________ day of ______________________, 20____, personally came before 

me, _____________________________, a Notary Public in and for said State and County, 

    , who by me duly sworn, says that she knows the common seal 

of the COUNTY OF WAYNE and is acquainted with Barbara Aycock, who is the Chairman of 

the Wayne County Board Commissioners of the County of Wayne and that she, the said Carol 

Bowden, Wayne County Clerk to the Board; and that she saw the Chairman of the Wayne 

County Board of Commissioners sign the foregoing instrument; and that she the said Wayne 

County Clerk to the Board, saw the said common seal of said corporation affixed thereto, and 

that she, the said Wayne County Clerk to the Board signed her name in attestation of said 

instrument in the presence of said Chairman of the Wayne County Board of Commissioners of 

the County of Wayne. 

 
 WITNESS my hand and official seal or stamp this the ______ day of _______________, 
20____. 
            
      _________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
 
__________________ 
 
 
 
  



7 
 

BERRY ALFRED PARKS 
 
 
BY: _______________________________(SEAL) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
Witness 
 
 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
WAYNE COUNTY 
 
 
 I,                                              , a Notary Public in and for said State and County, certify 

that BERRY ALFRED PARKS, personally appeared before me this day and  was signed by 

him and attested by __________________ as Witness. 

 
 WITNESS, my hand and Notarial Seal, this the              day of __________________, 
20_______. 
                        
 
 

                          
  
 ______________________________  

Notary Public 
 
 
My Commission Expires: 
 
______________________ 
 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

 

NORTH CAROLINA 

WAYNE COUNTY 

 THIS FARM LEASE, made this _____ day of _______________, 20_____, between 

the  CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA, a North Carolina Municipal corporation 

in the County of Wayne, State of North Carolina, whose address is P. O. Drawer A, Goldsboro, 

NC  27533, and WAYNE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA, a North Carolina body politic and 

corporate, whose address is P. O. Box 227, Goldsboro, NC  27533, parties of the first part, and 

SHAWN MITCHELL, party of the second part; 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 That the parties of the first part do hereby lease and farm let to the party of the second 

part, its heirs and assigns, all of the certain farm(s) or tract(s) of land situated in Wayne County, 

North Carolina, and more particularly described as follows:  

1. Northeast and Southeast corners of Arrington Bridge Road and Pecan Road 

Being 43.40 acres of that tract of land known more particularly as Farm 

#11852, Tract #3439 by the Wayne County Farm Service Agency. 

($97.70/Acre). Also being the property obtained by Grantor in Deed Book 

2487, Page 145 of the Wayne County Registry. 

 

2. Northeast corner of Genoa Road and Pecan Road  
Being 25.1 acres of that tract of land known more particularly as Farm 6599,  

Tract 2882 by the Wayne County Farm Service Agency. ($73.50/Acre). Also 

being the property obtained by Grantor in Deed Book 2767, Page 601 of the 

Wayne County Registry. 

 

 
1. TERM.  The term of this lease shall be for the period from January 1, 2023, 

through December 31, 2025.  

 



2 
 

 2. RENTAL.  Based on the acreage included within each Farm and Tract, the 

yearly rental for the above listed properties is as follows: 

1. Northeast and Southeast corners of Arrington Bridge Road and Pecan 
Road 

43.40 Acres @ $97.50/Acre  =  $4,231.50/Year 

Total  $4,231.50/Year 

2. Northeast corner of Genoa Road and Pecan Road 

25.1 Acres @ $73.50/Acre = $1,844.85/Year 

  Total  $1,844.85/Year 

In addition to the rental costs hereinabove provided, the party of the second part shall 

pay all costs due the ASCS Office or any other regulatory agency for the cultivation and 

marketing of said crop. 

 3. PAYMENT OF RENTAL.  The TOTAL yearly rental of the above properties 

shall be the sum of $6,076.35. Said rental payment shall be submitted no later than January 31st 

of each year of this Lease.   

 4. CLEARED LANDS.  The party of the second part shall be permitted to cultivate 

all cleared lands described herein.  

 5. VISIBILITY AND APPEARANCE.  The party of the second part shall maintain 

said land free and clear of the storage of equipment and signage.  Said land shall only be used 

for farming purposes.  The party of the second part shall maintain said land in a sightly 

condition, shall disc and remove all farm products from said land no later than December 31, 

2025, and return said land to the party of the first part in a sightly condition at the end of this 



3 
 

lease.  The lessee must keep all ditches cut and cleared of debris.  The lessee must mow any 

area around the track of land that is not being farmed.  

6. COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS.  The farm land hereinabove described 

may be subject to the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for the Seymour 

Johnson Air Force Base Buffer Project, CWMTF Project Nos. 2005A and 2004A-007 as 

recorded in Book 2485, Page 864, Wayne County Registry. 

7. SUBLEASES.  The lessee will not be permitted to sublease under their lease 

agreement with Wayne County.   

8.  CROP ROTATION REQUIREMENTS.  The agriculture producer will need to 

follow Best Management Practices (BMP’s) in regards to crop rotation.  During the three (3) 

year lease, the producer shall not grow more than one (1) tobacco crop and one (1) sweet potato 

crop.  It is recommended that the producer not grow the same grain crop two (2) years in a row.  

The lessee should have the soil tested and lime applied if needed with in the three (3) year 

period of the lease. 

9. ASCS.  The parties of the first part and the party of the second part shall execute 

such instruments or other documents as may be required by the ASCS Office or any other 

regulatory agency to effect the terms of this lease for the farm years 2023-2025. 

 10. INDEMNITY.  The party of the second part shall indemnify and save harmless 

the parties of the first part from any claim arising out of its occupancy of said land or out of its 

farm operation, cultivation and marketing of said crop. 

11. ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS.  If corn is planted on the subject 

property(ies), said property(ies) shall be disked in within seven (7) days after harvest.  Hunting 



4 
 

shall be prohibited on the property at all times.  The agriculture producer will need to follow 

Best Management Practices (BMP’s) in regards to crop rotation.  During the three (3) year 

lease, the producer shall not grow more than one (1) tobacco crop and one (1) sweet potato 

crop.  It is recommended that the producer not grow the same grain crop two (2) years in a row.  

The lessee should have the soil tested and lime applied if needed with in the three (3) year 

period of the lease. 

 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, said parties have executed this lease in triplicate 

originals, one of which is retained by each of the parties, the day and year first above written.  

 

SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW ON ADDITIONAL PAGES



5 
 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________(SEAL) 
 David Ham, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Laura Getz, City Clerk 
 
 

NORTH CAROLINA 
WAYNE COUNTY 
 
 This the ________ day of ______________________, 20____, personally came before 

me, _____________________________, a Notary Public in and for said State and County, 

LAURA GETZ,  who by me duly sworn, says that she knows the common seal of the CITY OF 

GOLDSBORO and is acquainted with David Ham, who is the Mayor of said municipal 

corporation; that she, the said Laura Getz is its City Clerk; and that she saw the Mayor sign the 

foregoing instrument; and that she, the said City Clerk, saw the said common seal of said 

corporation affixed thereto, and that she, the said City Clerk, signed her name in attestation of 

said instrument in the presence of said Mayor of said municipal corporation. 

 
WITNESS my hand and official seal or stamp this the ______ day of _______________, 
20____. 
            
  
      ___________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
 
__________________ 
 

 

  



6 
 

COUNTY OF WAYNE 

 
BY: ________________________________(SEAL) 
 Barbara Aycock, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Carol Bowden, Clerk to the Board  
 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
WAYNE COUNTY 
 
 This the ________ day of ______________________, 20____, personally came before 

me, _____________________________, a Notary Public in and for said State and County, 

    , who by me duly sworn, says that she knows the common seal 

of the COUNTY OF WAYNE and is acquainted with Barbara Aycock, who is the Chairman of 

the Wayne County Board Commissioners of the County of Wayne and that she, the said Carol 

Bowden, Wayne County Clerk to the Board; and that she saw the Chairman of the Wayne 

County Board of Commissioners sign the foregoing instrument; and that she the said Wayne 

County Clerk to the Board, saw the said common seal of said corporation affixed thereto, and 

that she, the said Wayne County Clerk to the Board signed her name in attestation of said 

instrument in the presence of said Chairman of the Wayne County Board of Commissioners of 

the County of Wayne. 

 
 WITNESS my hand and official seal or stamp this the ______ day of _______________, 
20____. 
            
      _________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
 
__________________ 
 
 
 
  



7 
 

SHAWN MITCHELL 
 
 
BY: _______________________________(SEAL) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
Witness 
 
 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
WAYNE COUNTY 
 
 
 I,                                              , a Notary Public in and for said State and County, certify 

that SHAWN MITCHELL, personally appeared before me this day and  was signed by him and 

attested by __________________ as Witness. 

 
 WITNESS, my hand and Notarial Seal, this the              day of __________________, 
20_______. 
                        
 
 

                          
  
 ______________________________  

Notary Public 
 
 
My Commission Expires: 
 
______________________ 
 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

 

NORTH CAROLINA 

WAYNE COUNTY 

 THIS FARM LEASE, made this _____ day of _______________, 20_____, between 

the  CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA, a North Carolina Municipal corporation 

in the County of Wayne, State of North Carolina, whose address is P. O. Drawer A, Goldsboro, 

NC  27533, and SHAWN MITCHELL, party of the second part; 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 That the parties of the first part do hereby lease and farm let to the party of the second 

part, its heirs and assigns, all of the certain farm(s) or tract(s) of land situated in Wayne County, 

North Carolina, and more particularly described as follows:   

 
A. Northeast corner of Arrington Bridge Road and South John Street 

Being 47.59 acres of that tract of land known more particularly as Farm 

#12942, Tract #10173 by the Wayne County Farm Service Agency. 

($97.50/Acre). Also being the property obtained by Grantor in Deed Book 

2038, Page 569 of the Wayne County Registry. 

 

1. TERM.  The term of this lease shall be for the period from January 1, 2023, 

through December 31, 2025.  

 

 2. RENTAL.  Based on the acreage included within each Farm and Tract, the 

yearly rental for the above listed properties is as follows: 

A. Northeast corner of Arrington Bridge Road and South John Street 

47.59 Acres @ $97.50/Acre  =  $4,640.02/Year 

Total  $4,640.02/Year 



2 
 

In addition to the rental costs hereinabove provided, the party of the second part 

shall pay all costs due the ASCS Office or any other regulatory agency for the 

cultivation and marketing of said crop. 

 3. PAYMENT OF RENTAL.  The TOTAL yearly rental of the above properties 

shall be the sum of $4,640.02. Said rental payment shall be submitted no later than January 31st 

of each year of this Lease.   

 4. CLEARED LANDS.  The party of the second part shall be permitted to cultivate 

all cleared lands described herein.  

 5. VISIBILITY AND APPEARANCE.  The party of the second part shall maintain 

said land free and clear of the storage of equipment and signage.  Said land shall only be used 

for farming purposes.  The party of the second part shall maintain said land in a sightly 

condition, shall disc and remove all farm products from said land no later than December 31, 

2025, and return said land to the party of the first part in a sightly condition at the end of this 

lease.  The lessee must keep all ditches cut and cleared of debris.  The lessee must mow any 

area around the track of land that is not being farmed.  

6. COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS.  The farm land hereinabove described 

may be subject to the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for the Seymour 

Johnson Air Force Base Buffer Project, CWMTF Project Nos. 2005A and 2004A-007 as 

recorded in Book 2485, Page 864, Wayne County Registry. 

  



3 
 

7. SUBLEASES.  The lessee will not be permitted to sublease under their lease 

agreement with Wayne County.   

8.  CROP ROTATION REQUIREMENTS.  The agriculture producer will need to 

follow Best Management Practices (BMP’s) in regards to crop rotation.  During the three (3) 

year lease, the producer shall not grow more than one (1) tobacco crop and one (1) sweet potato 

crop.  It is recommended that the producer not grow the same grain crop two (2) years in a row.  

The lessee should have the soil tested and lime applied if needed with in the three (3) year 

period of the lease. 

9. ASCS.  The parties of the first part and the party of the second part shall execute 

such instruments or other documents as may be required by the ASCS Office or any other 

regulatory agency to effect the terms of this lease for the farm years 2023-2025. 

 10. INDEMNITY.  The party of the second part shall indemnify and save harmless 

the parties of the first part from any claim arising out of its occupancy of said land or out of its 

farm operation, cultivation and marketing of said crop. 

11. ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS.  If corn is planted on the subject 

property(ies), said property(ies) shall be disked in within seven (7) days after harvest.  Hunting 

shall be prohibited on the property at all times.  The agriculture producer will need to follow 

Best Management Practices (BMP’s) in regards to crop rotation.  During the three (3) year 

lease, the producer shall not grow more than one (1) tobacco crop and one (1) sweet potato 

crop.  It is recommended that the producer not grow the same grain crop two (2) years in a row.  

The lessee should have the soil tested and lime applied if needed with in the three (3) year 

period of the lease. 



4 
 

 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, said parties have executed this lease in triplicate 

originals, one of which is retained by each of the parties, the day and year first above written.  

 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________(SEAL) 
 David Ham, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Laura Getz, City Clerk 
 
 

NORTH CAROLINA 
WAYNE COUNTY 
 
 This the ________ day of ______________________, 20____, personally came before 

me, _____________________________, a Notary Public in and for said State and County, 

LAURA GETZ,  who by me duly sworn, says that she knows the common seal of the CITY OF 

GOLDSBORO and is acquainted with David Ham, who is the Mayor of said municipal 

corporation; that she, the said LAURA GETZ is its City Clerk; and that she saw the Mayor sign 

the foregoing instrument; and that she, the said City Clerk, saw the said common seal of said 

corporation affixed thereto, and that she, the said City Clerk, signed her name in attestation of 

said instrument in the presence of said Mayor of said municipal corporation. 

 
WITNESS my hand and official seal or stamp this the ______ day of _______________, 
20____. 
            
  
      ___________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
 
__________________ 
 

  



5 
 

SHAWN MITCHELL 
 
 
BY: _______________________________(SEAL) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
Witness 
 
 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
WAYNE COUNTY 
 
 
 I,                                              , a Notary Public in and for said State and County, certify 

that SHAWN MITCHELL, personally appeared before me this day and  was signed by him and 

attested by __________________ as Witness. 

 
 WITNESS, my hand and Notarial Seal, this the              day of __________________, 
20_______. 
                        
 
 

                          
  
 ______________________________  

Notary Public 
 
 
My Commission Expires: 
 
______________________ 
 
 
 
 
 



O



RESOLUTION 2023- 10

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN THE

CHOICE NEIGHBORHOODS PLANNING GRANT AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority owns and operates a 300 unit public housing apartment
community in Goldsboro, known as West Haven Apartments, which will be the target area of the
Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grant; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro signed as co -applicant with the Housing Authority for
the Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grant, which was approved at the recessed Council Meeting
on July 15, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Goldsboro and the City of Goldsboro
were awarded the Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grant on December 22, 2022, and transmitted
the Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grant Agreement on January 19, 2023; and

WHEREAS, a resolution is needed to accept the grant and authorize the City Manager to
sign the Grant Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City
of Goldsboro, North Carolina that the City Manager is hereby authorized to sign the FY 2022
Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grant Agreement. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the
6t" 

day of February, 2023

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Clerk

d . — 

avid H , Mayor



 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
WASHINGTON, DC  20410-5000 

  
 

ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR 
PUBLIC AND INDIAN HOUSING 

 

 
www.hud.gov                espanol.hud.gov 

   

  

December 22, 2022  

Anthony Goodson, Jr. 
Chief Executive Officer 
Housing Authority of the City of Goldsboro 
P.O. Box 1403 
Goldsboro, NC  27533 
 
Timothy M. Salmon 
City Manager 
City of Goldsboro 
200 North Center St. 
Goldsboro, NC  27530 
 
Dear Mr. Goodson, Jr. and Mr. Salmon:   
 
 Congratulations!  We are pleased to inform you that the Housing Authority of the City of 
Goldsboro and the City of Goldsboro have been selected to receive a Fiscal Year (FY) 2022 
Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grant in the amount of $500,000 to support the development of 
a comprehensive neighborhood Transformation Plan for West Haven Apartments in the West 
Haven neighborhood.  The Department looks forward to working with you to accomplish the 
goals of this grant. 
 
 HUD received 31 applications for the FY 2022 Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grants 
competition from across the nation and awarded 9 grants totaling $4,409,000.  You are to be 
commended for your efforts to develop a viable, feasible approach to plan for neighborhood 
transformation.  For your information, enclosed are the scores for each rating factor in your 
application.   

 
 As you know, Planning Grants will enable communities to create a rigorously developed 
plan and build the support necessary for neighborhood transformation to be successful.  The 
implementation of a Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grant is a great responsibility.  
Accordingly, it will be essential for you to work closely with HUD officials to ensure that the 
Transformation Plan is developed in a timely and efficient manner.  You will soon receive a 
letter that will provide you with detailed information about your grant.   
 

http://www.hud.gov/


2 
 

Again, please accept our sincere congratulations.  We wish you every success. 
       
      Sincerely, 
 
           for  
 

Dominique Blom      
General Deputy Assistant Secretary    
for Public and Indian Housing    

     
 
Enclosure  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Lead Applicant: HA of the City of Goldsboro

Neighborhood: West Oak Neighborhood

Rating Category Rating Factor Maxium 

Points

Points 

Awarded

Capacity

1. Capacity to Lead the Planning Process Note: a 

maximum of 15 points can be earned here   if the applicant is not 

seeking points under RF 3, “Capacity of a Planning Partner.”  

18 10

2. Resident and Community Engagement 6 2

3. Capacity of a Planning Partner 0 0

subtotal 24 12

Need  

Unit distress

4. Immediate Project Capital Needs 3 1

5. Structural Deficiencies 5 5

6. Design Deficiencies 5 5

Neighborhood distress

7. Poverty/ELI (Neighborhood poverty) 6 6

8. Long-term Vacancy or Substandard Homes 2 2

9. Part I Violent Crime 2 2

10. Brownfields Cleanup 2 0

Need for affordable housing 

11. Need for Affordable Housing in the Community 2 0

subtotal 27 21

Soundness of Approach

12. Resident Engagement 7 6

13. Community Engagement 5 4

14. Assets & Needs Assessment 5 2

15. Visioning and Decision-Making 4 2

FY2022 Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grants Competition

Rating Review Score Summary

page 1 of 2



Lead Applicant: HA of the City of Goldsboro

Neighborhood: West Oak Neighborhood

Rating Category Rating Factor Maxium 

Points

Points 

Awarded

FY2022 Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grants Competition

Rating Review Score Summary

16. Partnerships 7 3

17. Staffing Plan 4 3

18. Planning Schedule 2 2

19. Budget 2 1

20. Consistency with Consolidated Plan 2 2

21. Consistency with PHA/MTW Plan 2 0

22. Local government support 5 5

subtotal 45 30

Leverage

23. Leverage for Planning 4 3

subtotal 4 3

Bonus/Preference Points

24. HBCU or Promise Zones 2 0

TOTAL 102 66

page 2 of 2























































Exhibit A 
Page 1 

Subgrantee and Contractor 
Certifications and Assurances 

The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires that all Subgrantees and 
Contractors on Choice Neighborhoods projects sign this “Certifications and Assurances” form 
certifying that they will comply with the applicable federal requirements described below.  Any 
applicable federal law, regulation, or other federal requirement continues to apply to the Grantee, 
Subgrantee and/or Contractor notwithstanding its omission from this Certification and 
Assurances form.  The parties who must sign a “Certifications and Assurances” form are defined 
below: 
• Subgrantees:  These are organizations to which the Grantee has awarded a grant from the 

Choice Neighborhoods grant that the Grantee received from HUD.  The subgrantee is 
accountable to the Grantee for the use of the funds provided, but the Grantee is ultimately 
accountable to HUD.

• Contractors:  This includes any for-profit contractor, consultant, service provider, or 
supplier that the Grantee contracts with for goods or services on any Choice Neighborhoods 
project. 

Certification and Assurance:  The subgrantee or contractor executing this certification hereby 
assures and certifies that it will comply with all of the applicable requirements of the following, 
as the same may be amended from time to time, including adding appropriate provisions to all 
contracts between Grantee and Subgrantees or Contractors: 

(1) Administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or 
breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate. 
(Contracts more than the simplified acquisition threshold) 

(2) Termination for cause and for convenience by the grantee or subgrantee including the 
manner by which it will be effected and the basis for settlement. (All contracts in excess of 
$10,000) 

(3) Compliance with the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (18 U.S.C. 874) as supplemented in 
Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 3). (All contracts and subgrants for construction 
or repair) 

(4) Compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a to 276a-7) as supplemented by 
Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 5). 

(5) Compliance with Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards 
Act (40 U.S.C. 327-330) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 5). 

(6) Notice of awarding agency requirements and regulations pertaining to reporting. 

(7) Notice of awarding agency requirements and regulations pertaining to patent rights with 
respect to any discovery or invention which arises or is developed in the course of or under such 
contract. 

(8) Awarding agency requirements and regulations pertaining to copyrights and rights in data. 



Exhibit A 
Page 2 

(9) Access by the grantee, the subgrantee, the Federal grantor agency, the Comptroller General 
of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives to any books, documents, 
papers, and records of the contractor which are directly pertinent to that specific contract for the 
purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions. 

(10) Retention of all required records for three years after grantees or subgrantees make final 
payments and all other pending matters are closed. 

(11) Compliance with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under the Clean 
Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq.), the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.), Executive Order 
11738, and Environmental Protection Agency regulations (40 CFR part 15).). 

(12) Mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the 
state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation 
Act (Pub. L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871), as amended. 

(13) Any applicable requirement listed in the applicable Choice Neighborhoods Grant 
Agreement. 

The information contained in this certification is true and accurate, to the best of my knowledge. 

Name of Subgrantee or Contractor Name and Contract Number: 

Signature of Authorized Certifying Official: Title: Date: 

WARNING:  Section 1001 of the Title 18 of the United States Code (Criminal Code and Criminal 
Procedure, 72 Stat.967) applies to this certification.  18 U.S.C. 1001, among other things, provides 
that whoever knowingly and willfully makes or uses a document or writing knowing the same to 
contain any false, fictitious or fraudulent statement or entry, in any matter within jurisdiction of 
any department or agency of the United States, shall be fined no more than $10,000 or imprisoned 
for not more than five years, or both. 

Return this form to: 

Grantee Name__________________________________________ 

Address_______________________________________________ 

City, State, ZIP Code_____________________________________ 



Assistance Award/Amendment U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development  
Office of Administration 

 

 

1. Assistance Instrument 
 Cooperative Agreement          Grant 

2. Type of Action 
 Award          Amendment 

3. Instrument Number 

     NC4F015CNP122 

4. Amendment Number 

      

5. Effective Date of this 
Action 

6. Control Number 

      
7. Name and Address of Recipient 
 
Housing Authority of the City of Goldsboro 
P.O. Box 1403 
Goldsboro, NC 27533-1403 
 

8. HUD Administering Office 

Office of Public Housing Investments 

Public and Indian Housing  

 8a. Name of Administrator 

Sue Wilson 

8b. Telephone Number 

202-402-4780 
10. Recipient Project Manager  

      

9. HUD Government Technical Representative 

      
11. Assistance 
Arrangement 

 Cost Reimbursement 
 Cost Sharing 
 Fixed Price 

12. Payment Method 
 Treasury Check Reimbursement 
 Advance Check 
 Automated Clearinghouse 

13. HUD Payment Office 

      

14. Assistance Amount 15. HUD Accounting and Appropriation Data 

Previous HUD Amount $      15a. Appropriation Number 15b. Reservation number 

HUD Amount this action $ 500,000             

Total HUD Amount $ 500,000 Amount Previously Obligated $      

Recipient Amount $      Obligation by this action $ 500,000 

Total Instrument Amount $ 500,000 Total Obligation $ 500,000 
16. Description 

FY 2022 Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grant 

(grant type: Planning) 

 

Public Housing Site: West Haven Apartments 

Neighborhood: West Haven 

Located in: Goldsboro, NC 

 

EIN/TIN: 56-6003260  UEI: GVNMFFNVLWW4 

 

Period of Performance Start Date: one day after HUD’s signature on this form 

Period of Performance End Date:  12/31/2024 

17.  Recipient is required to sign and return three (3) copies 
 of this document to the HUD Administering Office 

18.   Recipient is not required to sign this document. 

19. Recipient (By Name) 

Anthony Goodson Jr. 

20. HUD (By Name) 

Dominique Blom  
Signature & Title 
 
 
 

Chief Executive Officer 

Date (mm/dd/yyyy) 
 
 
 
      

Signature & Title 
 
 
for 

General Deputy Assistant Secretary 

Date (mm/dd/yyyy) 
 
12/22/2022 
 
      

form HUD-1044 (8/90) 
ref. Handbook 2210.17  
ref. Handbook 2210.17 



Item P



RESOLUTION NO. 2023 - 11
RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY

EDDIE MOSES AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO
FOR MORE THAN 26 YEARS

WHEREAS, Eddie Moses retires on March 1, 2023 as a Senior Heavy Equipment Operator, with more than
26 years of service with the Goldsboro Public Works Department; and

WHEREAS, Eddie began his career on May 29, 1996, as a Laborer I with the Public Works Department; and

WHEREAS, on November 4, 1998, Eddie was promoted to Equipment Operator I with the Public Works
Department; and

WHEREAS, on March 8, 2000, Eddie was promoted to Utility Maintenance Worker I with the Public Works
Department; and

WHEREAS, on May 5, 2004, Eddie was promoted to Utility Maintenance Worker II with the Public Works
Department; and

WHEREAS, on September 26, 2007, Eddie was promoted to Equipment Operator IV with the Public Works
Department; and

WHEREAS, on January 8, 2014, Eddie was promoted to Senior Heavy Equipment Operator with the Public
Works Department, where he has served until his retirement; and

WHEREAS, Eddie has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained the
admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of themselves, 
City employees, and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Eddie Moses their deep appreciation
and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North
Carolina that we express to Eddie Moses our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity, and good health
in his future endeavors. 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full force
and effect from and after this

6t" 

day of February, 2023. 

r'

h

5
ea

DaviT am, Mayor

Attested by: Mfr "
z

Laura Getz, City Cler :"+ 


	Agenda 02-06-23
	ws item c - FAA LGC
	Item A1 - Minutes 1-23-23
	Item A2 - Special Meeting Minutes 1-26-23
	The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, held a Special Meeting called by Mayor Ham to discuss downtown parking at the Wayne County Museum, 116 North William Street, at 5:30 p.m. on Thursday, January 26, 2023.
	UCall to Order.U  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:41 p.m.
	URoll Call.
	Present:  Mayor David Ham, Presiding
	Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack (arrived at 5:51 p.m.)
	Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones (arrived at 5:41 p.m.)
	Councilman Bill Broadaway
	Councilwoman Brandi Matthews

	Item C - Health care and WISH Proclamation 2023
	Item D - Developmental Disability month 2023
	Item F - Z-30-22
	Item G - Z-31-23
	Item H - Z-1-23
	Item I - SU-1-23
	Item J - Agenda 2023-02-06 P3106 2020 JAG Covid Close Out
	Agenda Memo BJA FY20 Covid P3106 Close 02-06-23
	ORDINANCE P3106 BJA FY20 Covid Close 02-06-23

	Item K - Agenda Item for February 6, 2023 - Utility Construction Agreement - NCDOT Project No. B-4838 Water and Sewer Line Relocations on US 70 Business (Grantham Street)
	Item L - CDBG Updated Policy
	Item M - Split Jurisdiction
	Item N - Farm Lease Agreements
	January 9, 2023 Council Meeting Agenda Memo for City Farm Lease Approval
	Farm Leases News-Argus Ad-Affidavit of Publication
	Farm lease Maps
	Resolution  - Lease of Farm Land Tracts_02 (002)
	Parks 2023- 2025 3 yr - City&County
	NORTH CAROLINA
	WAYNE COUNTY
	W I T N E S S E T H:
	CITY OF GOLDSBORO
	BY:  _____________________________(SEAL)
	ATTEST:
	Laura Getz, City Clerk
	NORTH CAROLINA
	WAYNE COUNTY
	Notary Public
	BY: ________________________________(SEAL)
	Barbara Aycock, Chairman
	ATTEST:
	Carol Bowden, Clerk to the Board
	NORTH CAROLINA
	WAYNE COUNTY
	Notary Public
	BERRY ALFRED PARKS
	BY: _______________________________(SEAL)
	ATTEST:
	______________________________________
	Witness
	NORTH CAROLINA
	WAYNE COUNTY
	I,                                              , a Notary Public in and for said State and County, certify that BERRY ALFRED PARKS, personally appeared before me this day and  was signed by him and attested by __________________ as Witness.
	Notary Public
	My Commission Expires:
	______________________

	Mitchell 2023- 2025 3 yr - City&County
	NORTH CAROLINA
	WAYNE COUNTY
	W I T N E S S E T H:
	CITY OF GOLDSBORO
	BY:  _____________________________(SEAL)
	ATTEST:
	Laura Getz, City Clerk
	NORTH CAROLINA
	WAYNE COUNTY
	Notary Public
	BY: ________________________________(SEAL)
	Barbara Aycock, Chairman
	ATTEST:
	Carol Bowden, Clerk to the Board
	NORTH CAROLINA
	WAYNE COUNTY
	Notary Public
	SHAWN MITCHELL
	BY: _______________________________(SEAL)
	ATTEST:
	______________________________________
	Witness
	NORTH CAROLINA
	WAYNE COUNTY
	I,                                              , a Notary Public in and for said State and County, certify that SHAWN MITCHELL, personally appeared before me this day and  was signed by him and attested by __________________ as Witness.
	Notary Public
	My Commission Expires:
	______________________

	Mitchell 2023- 2025 3 yr - City Only
	NORTH CAROLINA
	WAYNE COUNTY
	W I T N E S S E T H:
	CITY OF GOLDSBORO
	BY:  _____________________________(SEAL)
	ATTEST:
	Laura Getz, City Clerk
	NORTH CAROLINA
	WAYNE COUNTY
	Notary Public
	SHAWN MITCHELL
	BY: _______________________________(SEAL)
	ATTEST:
	______________________________________
	Witness
	NORTH CAROLINA
	WAYNE COUNTY
	I,                                              , a Notary Public in and for said State and County, certify that SHAWN MITCHELL, personally appeared before me this day and  was signed by him and attested by __________________ as Witness.
	Notary Public
	My Commission Expires:
	______________________


	Item O - Choice Neighborhoods
	Item M1 - Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grant Memo
	Item M1 - Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grant RES
	Item M2 - Award letters FY 22 CNP - Goldsboro-combined
	Award letters FY 22 CNP - Goldsboro-signedDaniforDB.pdf
	Goldsboro Rating Reviews Score Sheet FY22_Panel.pdf

	Item M3- Choice Neighborhoods Agreement
	Item M4 - Exhibit A Subgrantee and Contractor Certifications Assurances
	Item M5 - Goldsboro HUD1044 FY22 CN Planning Grant

	Item P - Black History Month 2023
	Item Q - Eddie Moses Retirement RES
	ADPC89F.tmp
	SHAPING THE FUTURE�CSS of Wayne County�
	Board Members�2022-2023
	    Programs and Services 
	The Dropout Crisis
	Success Coach Program
	Thank You For Your Support
	Carver Heights Elementary�Began in January 2019- Focusing on Elementary Reading
	 Partnership with Saint Paul Methodist Church at Carver Heights for our reading program!!  Volunteers are vital to our success!
	Dillard Middle School�CSS Program Since 2018�Focus – Academics, Small Groups, Career Goals
	Goldsboro High School Programs �CSS Program Began in 2008�Focusing on Graduation,  Academics, Career Goals
	Stuff the Bus 
	CSS Restorative Justice Program�“Doing Something Different”
	Waynecss.org

	ADP67FB.tmp
	This is to certify thAT
	FOR
	OUTSTANDING ACHIEVEMENT

	ADP3F63.tmp
	This is to certify thAT
	FOR




